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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Shareholders of GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A.:

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GAMESA
CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. (the parent company) and its subsidiaries (the Group),
which comprise consolidated statement of financial position at December 31, 2015, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated cash flow statement, and the
notes thereto for the year then ended.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the parent company are responsible for the preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements so that they give a true and fair view of the
consolidated equity and consolidated financial position and the consolidated results of
GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. and its subsidiaries, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union, and
other provisions in the regulatory framework applicable to the Group in Spain, and for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing audit
regulations in Spain. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements by the directors of the parent company in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view, in all material respects, of the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position
of GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2015,
and its consolidated results and consolidated cash flow for the year then ended, in
accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and other provisions in the regulatory
framework for financial information applicable in Spain.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The accompanying consolidated 2015 management report contains such explanations as
the directors of the parent company consider appropriate concerning the situation of the
Group, the evolution of its business and other matters; however, it is not an integral part of
the consolidated financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information
included in the aforementioned consolidated management report agrees with the 2015
consolidated financial statements. Our work as auditors is limited to verifying the
consolidated management report in accordance with the scope mentioned in this paragraph,
and does not include the review of information other than that obtained from the
accounting records of GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. and its subsidiaries.

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L.

The original signed in spanish

February 25, 2016
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Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the
event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (see Note 38)

GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES COMPOSING THE GAMESA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014 (*)

(Thousands of euros)

ASSETS Notes 12.31.15 12.31.14 (%) EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Notes 12.31.15 12.31.14 (%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS: EQUITY:
Intangible assets Of the Parent 18
Goodwill 8 388,410 386,756 Share capital 47,476 47,476
Other intangible assets 9 135,975 235,047 Share premium 386,415 386,415
524,385 621,803 Other reserves 976,921 884,118
Property, plant and equipment 10 Unrealised asset and liability revaluation reserve 7,675 1,762
Property, plant and equipment in use 327,282 315,941 Translation differences (15,551) (1,426)
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction 31,889 17,596 Treasury shares (46,244) (24,873)
359,171 333,537 Net profit for the year 170,216 91,848
Other equity instruments
Investments accounted for using the equity method 11 127,026 56,203 1,526,908 1,385,320
Non-current financial assets 13
Derivatives 7,584 1,864 Of non-controlling interests 19 296 93
Investment securities 36,423 35,683 Total equity 1,527,204 1,385,413
Other non-current financial assets 3,384 3,158
Other non-current financial assets, related companies 99,883 -
147,274 40,705 |NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Deferred tax assets 25 421,788 405,289 [Provisions for contingencies and charges 23 256,912 235,040
Total non-current Assets 1,579,644 1,457,537 |Bank borrowings 21 444,902 527,311
Other non-current liabilities 24 43,940 53,629
Deferred tax liabilities 25 115,648 83,405
Derivative financial instruments 22 3,869 738
Total non-current liabilities 865,271 900,123
CURRENT ASSETS: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Inventories 14 803,259 564,492 |Bank borrowings and other financial liabilities
Trade and other receivables 15 988,838 1,052,597 Bank borrowings 21 102,899 92,583
Trade receivables from related companies 32 81,581 67,592 Derivative financial instruments 22 4,265 13,448
Tax receivables 26 213,083 192,529 107,164 106,031
Other receivables 42,171 44,446 |Trade and other payables 1,788,901 1,448,770
Current financial assets Trade payables to related companies 32 148,721 237,949
Derivative financial instruments 22 9,662 8,963 |Other payables
Other current financial assets 16,789 19,041 Tax payables 26 100,273 99,859
Other current financial assets from related companies 32 7,559 2,108 Other current liabilities 102,288 71,725
34,010 30,112 202,561 171,584
Cash and cash equivalent 16 869,333 811,029
Total current assets 3,032,275 2,762,797 Total current liabilities 2,247,347 1,964,334
Current assets classified as held for sale 36 28,746 31516 Current liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale 36 843 1.980
TOTAL ASSETS 4,640,665 4,251,850 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4,640,665 4,251,850

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 and the Appendix are an integral part
of the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2015.




Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the
event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (see Note 38).

GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPOSING THE GAMESA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED

December 31, 2015 and 2014
(Thousands of euros)

Thousands of euros

Notes 2015 2014 (*)
Continuing operations:
Revenue 7 and 29.A 3,503,802 2,846,157
+/- Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 79,575 54,996
Procurements 29.B (2,478,139) (1,996,070)
Other operating income 29.A 63,448 59,199
Staff costs 29.C (341,050) (302,924)
Other operating expenses 29.D (307,490) (296,863)
Depreciation 29.E (96,053) (91,955)
Provisions 29.E (133,305) (83,393)
Net impairment losses on assets 9 and 10 31,957 (7,968)
OPERATING INCOME 322,745 181,179
Finance income 29.F 13,599 11,682
Finance costs 29.G (47,125) (54,355)
Exchange differences (gains and losses) (10,632) (3,712)
Results of companies accounted for using the equity method 11 (24,988) (667)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 253,599 134,127
Income tax on profit from continuing operations 27 (76,553) (38,119)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 177,046 96,008
Discontinued operations:
Profit from the year from discontinued operations 7 and 36 (7,172) (4,839)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 169,874 91,169
Non-controlling interests 19 342 679
Total profit for the year attributable to the parent 170,216 91,848
Earnings per share in euros (basic and diluted) from continuing and discontinued operations
attributable to the parent 35
From continuing operations 0.6424 0.3737
From discontinued operations (0.0260) (0.0187)
Earnings per share in euros (basic and diluted) 0.6164 0.3550

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 and the Appendix are an integral part of the consolidated income statement for 2015.




Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the
event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (see Note 38).

GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES COMPOSING THE GAMESA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2015 AND 2014

(Thousands of euros)

Notes 2015 2014 (*)
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 169,874 91,169
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSE RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY
Items that can be transferred subsequently to results:
Income and expense transferred directly to equity
Arising from cash flow hedges 18.C 9,260 (717)
Translation differences (14,125) 46,822
Tax effect 18.C (3,001) 245
(7,866) 46,350
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO PROFIT OR LOSS
Arising from cash flow hedges 18.C (516) 2,940
Tax effect 18.C 170 (894)
(346) 2,046
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (8,212) 48,396
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 161,662 139,565
Attributable to the Parent 162,004 140,244
Attributable to non-controlling interests 19 (342) (679)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 161,662 139,565
From continuing operations 168,834 144,404
From discontinued operations (7,172) (4,839)

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 and the Appendix are an integral part of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the 2015.




Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the
event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (see Note 38).

GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A.
AND SUBSIDIARIES COMPOSING THE GAMESA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
(Thousands of euros)

Unrealised Restricted reserve
asset and liability Reserve for Reserve
Share Share revaluation Legal redenomination of for treasury Treasury Other Translation Net profit Interim Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve capital in euros shares shares reserves differences for the year Dividend interests equity
[Balances at January 1, 2014 (*) 43,160 154,619 188 8,408 21,340 (21,340) 810,138 (48,248) 45,033 (565) 4,924 1,017,658
Total comprehensive income for 2014 - - 1,574 - - - - - 46,822 91,848 - (679) 139,565
Capital increase 4,316 231,796 - - - - - (2,588) - - - - 233,524
Distribution of 2013 profit:

Other reserves - - - 224 - - - 44,809 - (45,033) - - -
Treasury share transactions (Notes 3.P and 18.E) - - - - - 3,533 (3,533) (1,653) - - - - (1,653)
Incentive plans (Note 18.E) - - - - - - - 2,729 - - - - 2,729
Other transactions - - - - - - - (2,823) - - 565 (4,152) (6,410)

Balances at December 31, 2014 (*) 47,476 386,415 1,762 8,632 1 24,873 (24,873) 850,612 (1,426) 91,848 - 93 1,385,413
Total comprehensive income for 2015 - - 5913 - - - - - (14,125) 170,216 - (342) 161,662
Distribution of 2014 profit:

Other reserves - - - 862 - - - 68,204 - (69,066) - - -
Dividend in charge of the outcome of 2014 - - . - - - - - - (22,782) - - (22,782)
Treasury share transactions (Notes 3.P and 18.E) - - - - - 21,371 (21,371) (120) - - - - (120)
Incentive plans (Note 18.E) - - . - - - = 1,639 = - - - 1,639
Other transactions - - - - - - = 847 = - - 545 1,392

Balances at December 31, 2015 47,476 386,415 7,675 9,494 1 46,244 (46,244) 921,182 (15,551) 170,216 - 296 1,527,204

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 and the Appendix are an integral part of the statement of changes in consolidated total equity for the year 2015.

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.




Translation of consolidated financial statements originally issued in Spanish. In the

event of discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails (see Note 38).

GAMESA CORPORACION TECNOLOGICA, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2015 AND 2014

(Thousands of euros)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation charge, provisions and allowances
Incentive Plan
Finance income and costs
Results of entities valued by the equity method
Net impairment losses on non-current assets

Changes in working capital:
Change in trade and other receivables
Change in inventories
Change in trade and other payables
Effect on working capital of changes in consolidation method and/or scope
Effect of translation differences on working capital of foreign companies
Payments of provisions
Income taxes charged/(paid)
Interest received
Interest paid

Net cash flows from operating activities (I)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of the existing liquid items
Investments in intangible assets
Investments in property, plant and equipment
Investments in other non-current financial assets
Investments in other current financial assets
Receipts from disposals of intagible assets and property, plant and equipment
Receipts from disposal of financial and non financial assets
Receipts from disposal of of subsidiaries

Net Cash flows from investment activities (Il)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Equity amortisation/(issue) of subsidiaries
Capital increase
New bank borrowings
Dividends paid
Dividends charged
Cash outflows relating to bank borrowings
Acquisition and disposals of treasury shares

Net cash flows from financing activities (lll)

held for sale (V)

Cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations at beginning of year

Total cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations at end of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (IV)

Effect of changes on cash and cash equivalents and of transfers to assets classified as held for sale

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations (I+lI+1l1+IV+V)

Notes 2015 2014 (*)

246,427 131,833

9,10,22 and 29.E 229,358 175,348
18.E and 29.C 1,639 2,729
29.F and 29.G 45,475 49,565
11 24,988 667

10 and 11 (29,111) 7,968
14,861 426,626
(257,211) (71,295)
233,355 (263,171)

- (923)

(8,017) 39,306

23 (88,235) (108,706)
(60,612) (30,402)

11,899 8,829

(39,752) (59,288)

325,064 309,086

2.6 (2,544) -

9 (55,520) (55,692)

10 (112,338) (55,383)

13 (3,672) (3,249)
(8,005) (11,409)

11,140 26,107

685 10,717

- 85,416

(170,254) (3,493)

11 5,880 (4,060)

- 232,520

222,441 97,517

(22,782) -

11 3,006 -
(304,619) (725,379)

(120) (1,653)

(96,194) (401,055)

(311) 12,875

58,305 (82,587)

16 811,028 893,615
16 869,333 811,028

(*) Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 38 and the Appendix are an integral part of the consolidated statement of cash flows for 2015



Translation of Financial Statements originally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordance with
the regulatory financial reporting framework applicable to the Company (see Note 22). In the
event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-language version prevails.

Gamesa Corporacion Tecnolégica, S.A. and Subsidiaries
composing the GAMESA Group

Notes to the Consolidated Annual Accounts
for the year ended
December 31, 2015

1. Formation of the Group and its activities

The Company Gamesa Corporacién Tecnolégica, S.A. (hereinafter “the Company” or
“GAMESA”) was incorporated as a public limited liability company on January 28 1976. lts
registered office is located at Parque Tecnoldgico de Vizcaya, Edificio 222, Zamudio (Vizcaya -
Spain).

Its company object is the promotion and development of companies through temporary
ownership interests in their share capital, for which it can perform the following transactions:

a) Subscription and acquisition of shares, or securities that are convertible into shares, or
which grant rights for their preferential acquisition, in companies whose shares may be
listed or not on Spanish or foreign stock markets.

b)  Subscription and acquisition of fixed-income securities or any other securities issued by
the companies in which it holds an interest, as well as the granting of participating loans
or guarantees.

c) Direct provision to investees of counselling, technical assistance and other similar
services related to the management of investees, to their financial structure or to their
production or marketing processes.

The indicated activities will focus on the development, design, manufacture and supply of
products, installations and technologically advanced services in the renewable energy sector.

All the activities which make up the aforementioned company object may be carried on in Spain
or abroad, and may be carried on indirectly (totally or partially) through the ownership of shares
or other equity investments in companies with an identical or a similar corporate purpose. The
Company may not carry on any business activity for which the applicable legislation provides for
specific conditions or limitations unless it fully meets such conditions or limitations.

The Company's bylaws and other public information on the Company may be consulted on the
website www.gamesacorp.com and at its registered office.

In addition to the operations carried on directly by it, GAMESA is the head of a group of
subsidiaries that engage in various business activities and which compose, together with the
Company, the GAMESA Group (“the Group” or “‘the GAMESA Group”). Therefore, in addition to
its own separate financial statements, the Company is obliged to present Consolidated Financial
Statements for the Group including its interests in joint ventures and investments in associates.
The companies that form part of the Group are listed in the Appendix.



The GAMESA Group currently operates as a manufacturing group and principal supplier of
cutting-edge products, facilities and services in the renewable energy industry, as well as
maintenance services rendered into the following business units (Note 7):

Wind Turbines (*)
Operation and maintenance

(*) Wind turbine manufacturing includes the development, construction and sale of energy plants.

A.

INFORMATION ON THE ENVIRONMENT

In view of the business activities carried on by the GAMESA Group, it does not have any
environmental liability, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with
respect to its equity, financial position and results. Therefore, the directors did not include any
specific disclosures relating to environmental issues in these notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

2.

Basis of presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements and basis of

consolidation

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Consolidated Financial Statements for 2015 of the GAMESA Group were formally prepared:

By the directors of GAMESA, at the Board of Directors Meeting held on February 24,
2016.

Since 2005, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union, including the International Accounting Standards (IAS)
and the interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) and by the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC). The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and
liabilities (including derivatives) at fair value. The principal accounting policies and
measurement bases applied in preparing the GAMESA Group's Consolidated Financial
Statements for 2015 are summarised in Note 3.

Taking into account all the mandatory accounting policies and rules and measurement
bases with a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

So that they present fairly the consolidated equity and consolidated financial position of
the GAMESA Group at December 31, 2015, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its consolidated cash flows in the year then ended.

On the basis of the accounting records kept by GAMESA and by the other Group
companies. However, since the accounting policies and measurement bases used in
preparing the Group's Consolidated Financial Statements for 2015 (IFRS) could differ
from those used by the Group companies when preparing their individual financial
statements in accordance with local standards, the required adjustments and
reclassifications were made on consolidation to unify the policies and methods used and
to make them compliant with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the GAMESA Group for 2014 were approved by the
shareholders at the General Meeting of GAMESA held on May 8, 2015 and were filed at the
Vizcaya Mercantile Registry. The Group's 2015 Consolidated Financial Statements have not yet
been approved by the shareholders at the General Meeting. However, the Board of Directors of



GAMESA considers that these Consolidated Financial Statements will be approved without any
changes.

B. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS)

In 2015 new accounting standards and amendments came into force and were therefore taken
into account when preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements as the following:

B.1) Standards and amendments published by the IASB (International Accounting
Standards Board) and adopted by the European Union for its aplication in Europe from

January 1, 2015:

e |IFRIC 21: “Levies”

e Annual improvements to IFRS — Course 2011-2013
o IFRS 3: “Business combinations”
o IFRS 13: “Fair value calculation”
o IAS 40: “Investment properties”

These standards did not have a significant impact on these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

B.2) At the date of preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements there have been
issued the following standards, amendments and interpretations whose effective date is
subsequent to December 31, 2015:

Mandatory application for
years beginning from

Annual improvements to several standards 2010-2012 February 1, 2015

Annual improvements to several standards 2012-2014 January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined benefit Plans: employee contributions February 1, 2015
IFRS 14 Deferred regulatory accounts January 1, 2016
Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangements January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 16 Accepted depreciation methods January 1, 2016
and 38
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity method in separate financial statements January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 28| Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint January 1, 2016
and FRS 10
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure initiative January 1, 2016
Amendments to IFRS Investment companies: exemption to consolidation January 1, 2016
10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of cash flows: initiative for information to disclose January 1, 2017
Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets from unrealized losses January 1, 2017
IFRS 15 Income from client agreements January 1, 2018
IFRS 9 Financial instruments January 1, 2018
IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019

At the preparing date of these Consolidated Financial Statements, these standards,
interpretations and amendments are pending on the adoption by the European Union with the
exception of the amendments to IAS 1, IAS 12, IAS 19, IAS 27, IAS 16 and 38, IFRS 11, IFRS
14 and periods 2010-2012 and 2012-2014 of improvements to many standards.



None of these standards have been adopted in advance by the GAMESA Group. The Group is,
at present, analyzing the impact of the application of those approved standards, interpretations
and amendments whose application is not mandatory in the year 2015. In the specific case of
IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, that analysis will continue during the year 2016 due to their
complexity. Regarding the rest of the standards, GAMESA estimates that its application would
not have supposed significant amendments to the present Consolidated Financial Statements in
and will not suppose a significant impact in the moment of its initial application.

C. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The accounting records kept by Group companies are measured using the currency of the
principal economic environment in which the company operates («functional currency»). The
Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in thousands of euros, which is GAMESA
Group's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the euro are recognised in accordance with
the policies described in Note 3.L.

D. RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INFORMATION

The information gathered in these Consolidated Financial Statements is the responsibility of
GAMESA's Board of Directors.

E. INFORMATION RELATING TO PREVIOUS YEAR

As required by IAS 1, the information relating to 2015 contained in these notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements is presented, for comparison purposes, with the information
relating to 2014 and, accordingly, it does not constitute the GAMESA Group's statutory
Consolidated Financial Statements for 2014.

F. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
Subsidiaries

The subsidiaries over which the GAMESA Group exercises control were fully consolidated by
equity method.

Subsidiaries are all companies (including structured entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls a company when it receives, or is entitled to receive, variable yields due to
its involvement in the investee company and it has the capacity to use its control to influence
these yields.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and
they are out of the scope from the date that control ceases.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity in which two or more parties maintain joint control, which is
understood to be the distribution of control by a contract concluded in the joint venture
agreement and which exists only when the decisions regarding relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

GAMESA Group records its stakes in joint ventures on an equity basis.



Associated companies

The associates over which the GAMESA Group is in a position to exercise significant influence,
but not control, were accounted for in the consolidated balance sheet using the equity method.
For the purpose of preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements, it was considered that
the GAMESA Group is in a position to exercise significant influence over companies in which it
has an investment of between 20% and 50% of the share capital, except in specific cases
where, although the percentage of ownership is lower, the existence of significant influence can
be clearly demonstrated. Also, significant influence is deemed not to exist in cases where,
although an ownership interest of more than 20% is held, the absence of significant influence
can be clearly demonstrated. Significant influence is deemed to exist when the GAMESA Group
has the power to influence on the financial and operating policies of an investee (Notes 2.G and
11)

A list of GAMESA's subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, together with the consolidation
or measurement bases used in preparing the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
and other relevant information are disclosed in the Appendix of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Basic standards of consolidation

The operations of GAMESA and of the consolidated companies were consolidated in
accordance with the following basic principles:

. The Group is considered to be carrying out a business combination when the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed constitute a business. The Group accounts for each
business combination by applying the acquisition method, which entails identifying the
acquirer, determining the acquisition date-which is the date on which control is obtained-
and cost of acquisition, recognising and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the
liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and, lastly,
recognising and measuring goodwill or a gain from a bargain purchase.

. Goodwill arising as described in the preceding paragraph has not been amortised since
January 1, 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, although it is reviewed for impairment at
least once a year (Note 8).

. Goodwill is initially measured as the amount in excess paid, the amount of any non-
controlling stake in a target company and, in a business combination carried out by
stages, the fair value at the acquisition date of any prior stakes in the target company's
equity, if any, above the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total
amount paid, the non-controlling stake recognised and the interest previously maintained
is less than the fair value of the acquired company's net assets in the event of very
favourable conditions, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

o Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are initially valued at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

. For each business combination, the buyer will assess in the acquisition date, the
components of non-controlling shareholdings held by the acquiree that constitute current
ownership and grant the holder the right to a proportional part of the company's net
assets in the event of liquidation, at:

(@) fair value, or

(b) the proportional part that the current ownership instruments represent in the
amounts recognised by the acquiree as net identifiable assets.

10



All other components of non-controlling shareholdings will be measured at their fair value
at the date of acquisition, unless IFRS require another basis of valuation.

The value of non-controlling shareholdings in equity and results of the fully consolidated
subsidiaries is presented under “Equity - Of Non-Controlling Interests” in the
consolidated balance sheet and “Profit for the Year - Attributable to Non-Controlling
Interests” in the consolidated income statement.

Any contingent compensation to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value
on the date of acquisition. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
compensation that is considered to be an asset or a liability are recognised in the income
statement or a change in other comprehensive results in accordance with IAS 39.
Contingent compensation that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
payment is recorded under equity.

Acquisitions-related costs are recognised as expenses in the year in which they are
incurred and, therefore, are not considered to be an increase in the cost of the
combination.

In business combinations achieved in stages, the acquirer remeasures its previously
held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognises the
resulting gain or loss, if any, in profit or loss.

Purchases and sales of non-controlling interests in companies that are and continue to
be subsidiaries both prior and subsequent to the aforementioned transactions are
considered to be transactions between shareholders and, therefore, the payments made
will be recognised in the Group's consolidated equity (Note 19).

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the subsidiary’s assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities and the non-controlling interest at the carrying amount
thereof at the date on which control is lost. The consideration received and the
investment retained in the aforementioned company are measured at their fair value at
the date when control is lost and any gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The financial statements of foreign companies were translated to euros using the year-
end exchange rate method. This method consists of translating to euros all the assets,
rights and obligations at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the Consolidated
Financial Statements, the consolidated income statement items at the average exchange
rates for the year, and equity at the historical exchange rates at the date of acquisition
(or in the case of retained earnings at the average exchange rates for the year in which
they were generated), and the differences are recognised with a charge or a credit, as
appropriate, to “Equity - Of the Parent - Translation Differences” in the consolidated
balance sheet.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include certain adjustments to
bring the accounting policies and procedures applied by the subsidiaries into line with
those of GAMESA.

All balances and transactions between fully and proportionally consolidated companies
have been eliminated in the consolidation. Gains that arise on intra-group transactions
that are recognised as assets are also eliminated (including transactions with associated
companies).

The result of accounting for ownership interests using the equity method (after
eliminating results on intra-Group transactions) is reflected under "Equity - Of the Parent
— Other Reserves" and “Results of Companies Accounted for Using the Equity Method”
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income statement,
respectively. The equity method consists of initially recognising the investment at cost
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and subsequently adjusting it, based on the changes in the portion of the entity's net
assets that corresponds to the investor, recognising in the investor's profit or loss the
corresponding portion of the investee's result for the year (Note 11).

G. CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION
The most significant inclusions in the scope of consolidation in 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Incorporation or acquisition of new companies

Year 2015
Percentage of
stake of the
Company incorporated / acquired Holding company of the stake Group
Adwen Offshore, S.L. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U. 50%
Gamesa Edlica, S.L. "Branch Jamaica" Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U. 100%
Gamesa Belgium, S.R.L. Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U. 100%
Gamesa Israel Ltd. Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U. 100%
Gamesa Mauritius Ltd. Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U. 100%
B9 Energy O&M Limited Gamesa Wind UK, Ltd. 100%

At the end of 2015, the aforementioned companies are fully consolidated with the exception of
Adwen Offshore, S.L. which is integrated by the equity method.

On March 9, 2015, the GAMESA Group has signed with Areva, S.A. (hereinafter “AREVA”) and
other companies of its group, the necessary agreements for the constitution of a company
participated 50% by both groups to which each part provides with its offshore business and
through which that business is exclusively performed (Note 11).

On July 29, 2015 the GAMESA Group subscribed a purchase-sale agreement for the acquisition
of 100% of the share capital of B9 Energy O&M Limited, a North Irish company mainly dedicated
to the render of wind farm maintenance services both in Ireland and United Kingdom, for an
amount of €2,687 thousands (Note 8). At the acquisition date, that company had cash and cash
equivalents for an amount of €143 thousands.

On December 17, 2015, the GAMESA Group subscribed a purchase-sale agreement for the
acquisition of 50% of the share capital of Nuevas Estrategias de Mantenimiento, S.L., a Spanish
company mainly dedicated to the design, production, development and commercialization of
engineering and technological solutions for an amount of €4,500 thousands, being this operation
subject to the compliance of several precedent conditions that are supposed to be complied
during the first term of 2016. This is the reason why this has not been consolidated at December
31, 2015. No amount has been paid at December 31, 2015.
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Year 2014

Interest held by

Company incorporated / acquired Incorporating company the Group
Gesan México 1, S.A.P.l. de C.V. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U 100%
Energia Edlica de México, S.A. de C.V. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U 50%
Energia Renovable del Istmo, S.A.P.I. de C.V. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U 50%
Société D’exploitation Du Parc Eolien Du Tonnerois Gamesa Inversiones 100%

Energéticas Renovables

S.C.R. de Régimen

Simplificado, S.A. (**)
Lichnowy Windfarm Sp. z o.0. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U 100%
Ujazd Sp. z o.0. Gamesa Energia, S.A.U 100%
Gamesa Mauritania SARL Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U 100%
Gamesa Ukraine LLC Gamesa Europa, S.L.U (¥) 100%
Windar Offshore, S.L. Windar Renovables, S.L. 32%

(*) Gamesa Europa, S.L. (Unipersonal) (formerly Gamesa Energia Galicia, S.L. Unipersonal) holds 99% of
the share capital in this company while Gamesa Edlica, S.L. (Sociedad Unipersonal) owns the remaining

1%.
(**) Actually Gamesa Inversiones Energéticas, S.A.

At the end of 2014, the aforementioned companies are fully consolidated with the exception of
Windar Offshore, S.L.U. which is consolidated by the equity method.

On October 29, 2014, Gamesa Energia, S.A.U. acquired 100% of Central Edlica de México I,
S.A. de C.V. for an amount of €2,577 thousands. This company is owner of rights to use land for

the promotion of wind farms in México.

Exits from the scope of consolidation - Sales

Year 2015
- Registered

Company Activity P %
Medicine Bowl Wind LLC Operation of wind farms USA 100%
Southern Windfarm sp. Zoo. W . ) o
Organizagji Operation of wind farms Poland 100%
Windfarm Horst GmbH Operation of wind farms Germany 100%
Société D'exploitation Du Parc Eolien Du . ) o
Tonnerois Operation of wind farms France 100%
Suchan Sp z.0.0. Operation of wind farms Poland 100%
SAS SEPE du Plateu Operation of wind farms France 100%
Edlica dos Arbolitos, S.A.P.1. de C.V. Operation of wind farms Mexico 100%
New Broadband Network Solutions, S.L. Manufacturing and Holding Spain 31.19%

Company
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Year 2014

. Registered

Company Activity Address %
Parco Eolico Orune, Srl Operation of wind farms Italy 100%
Parque Edlico do Pisco, S.A. Operation of wind farms Portugal 100%
Energiaki Ptoon, S.A. Operation of wind farms Greece 100%
Eodlica El Retiro S.A.P.I. de C.V. Operation of wind farms Mexico 87.50%
Energiaki Maristi MEPE (SLU) Electric energy production Greece 100%
Elecdey Barchin, S.A. Operation of wind farms Spain 100%
Worldwater & Solar Technologies Inc. Operation of wind farms USA 25.67%
Vento Artabro, S.A. Operation of wind farms Spain 80%
Sistemas Energéticos Almodévar del Rio, S.L. Electric energy production Spain 100%

Exits from the scope mainly correspond to wind farms that have been sold during 2015 and
2014 and whose net assets were classified as stock, so that the sale of them, as it is stated in
Note 3.A., has been registered in “Revenue” of 2015 and 2014 consolidated income statement,
for an equivalent to the sum of the wind farm’s shares price and the net debt related to that wind

farm.

Exits from the scope of consolidation - Winding up of companies

Year 2015
Company Activity Registered Address %
Sistemas Energéticos Ortegal, S.A. Electric power production Spain 80%
Ger Cerbal S.R.L. Electric power production Romania 100%
Ger Jirlau S.R.L. Electric power production Romania 100%
Ger Ponor S.R.L. Electric power production Romania 100%
Ger Pribeagu S.R.L. Electric power production Romania 100%
Ger Bordusani S.R.L. Electric power production Romania 100%
Coemga Renovables, S.L. Operation of wind farms Spain 100%
Coemga Renovables 1 ,S.L. Operation of wind farms Spain 100%
Manufacturing wind turbine 100%
Gamesa wind (Tianjin) Co. Ltd, Shanxi Branch components China
Zefiro Energy S.R.L. Operation of wind farms Italy 100%
Year 2014
- Registered ®
Company Activity Aess %
Sistemas Energéticos Ferrol Nerén, S.A.U. Operation of wind farms Spain 100%
Xeneracion Edlica de Galizia, S.A. Development of wind farms Spain 65%
Manufacturing and Holding 100%
Gamesa Estonia OU Company Estonia °

Changes in the shareholdings of subsidiaries

Year 2015

The GAMESA Group increased its stake in Lingbo SPW AB in 2015, until reaching the 100% of
the stake of that company over which already had the control. That amendment did not have a

significant impact in the net consolidated equity at December 31, 2015.
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Likewise, on March 9, 2015 the GAMESA Group has given the 100% of its stake in Sistemas
Energéticos Arinaga, S.A. for the set-up of the new subsidiary at 50% with AREVA focused on
the offshore business (Notes 10.A and 11).

Year 2014

During 2014 GAMESA Group has increased the stake in Gesacisa Desarrolladora, S.A de CV
and Eodlica Dos Arbolitos, S.A.P.I de CV, up to 100% of both companies from over which already
had control. Additionally, it has increased the stake in New Broadband Network Solutions,
S.L.up to 39.62% (18.81% in 2013). Those changes have no significant impact on the
Consolidated Equity at December 31, 2014.

On the other hand, in the first semester of 2014, GAMESA has increased the stake in Compass
Transworld Logistics, S.A. up to 100% (51% at December 31, 2013). The operation performed
with Compass Transworld Logistics, S.A. has meant that the difference between the amount
paid and the minority interests acquired, that come to €4.048 thousands, was registered as a
debit to the heading “Equity — Other reserves” of the attached consolidated balance sheet at
December 31, 2014,

Other corporate transactions

Year 2015

During 2015, the company Compass Transworld Logistics, S.A. was taken over through merger
into the company Gamesa Edlica, S.L.U. so that no variation in the scope of the Group has been
occurred.

Additionally, during 2015 the company Gamesa Wind Poland, Sp. Zoo was taken over through
merger into the company Gamesa Energia Polska Sp. Zoo. The company Gamesa Energy
Sweeden AB was merged by absorption in the company Gamesa Wind Sweden AB, changes
that did not have effect on the scope of the Group.

Likewise, during 2015, Cantarey Reinosa, S.A. and Gamesa Electric Power Systems, S.L. were
absorbed by Gamesa Electric, S.A. This change did not affect to the scope of the Group.

Finally, during 2015, Gamesa Inversiones Energéticas Renovables S.C.R de régimen
simplificado has changed its firm name to Gamesa Inversiones Energéticas, S.A.; also, Gamesa
Wind Turbines Private, Ltd changed its firm name to Gamesa Renewable, Ltd.

Year 2014

In 2014, the companies Especial Gear Transission, S.A. Unipersonal, Tranmisiones Edlicas de
Galicia, S.A. y Gamesa Burgos, S.A. has been taken over through merger into the company
Gamesa Energy Transmission, S.A., so there have been no changes in the Group’s perimeter.

Likewise in 2014, the Company Valencia Power Converters, S.A. has been taken over through
merger into the company Enertron S.L. and the company Wind Power Brasil S.L has been taken
over through merger into de company Windar Renovables, S.L. Both cases have not caused
any changes in the Gorup’s perimeter.

In 2014, the denomination of the following companies mentioned has changed: Ger Baneasa
S.R.L (formerly Ger Ludud, S.R.L.) and Parco Eolico Forleto Nuovo 2 S.r.I (formerly Parco
Eolico Aria del Vento S.R.L).
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3. Accounting principles and policies and measurement methods applied

A. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from sales is measured at the fair value of the assets or rights received as
consideration for the goods and services provided in the normal course of the Group companies'
business, net of discounts and applicable taxes. Sales of goods are recognised when the goods
have been delivered and title thereto has been transferred and services are recognised when
rendered. Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in accordance with the GAMESA
Group’s accounting policy described in Note 3.B.

Sales of wind farms whose non-current assets are classified as inventories (Note 3.G) are
recognised under “Revenue” in the consolidated income statement for the total price of the
shares of the wind farm plus the amount of the net borrowings relating to the facility (total debt
less current assets). At the same time, the related inventories are derecognised with a charge to
“Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work in Progress” in the consolidated income
statement. The difference between the two amounts represents the operating profit or loss
obtained from the sale.

Each wind farm that has been already sold adopts the legal structure of a public or private
limited liability company (see Appendix), the shares of which are fully consolidated in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. As a general rule, a wind farm is effectively
sold once it has entered into operation and has successfully completed the start-up period.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders' right to receive
payment have been established.

B. STAGE OF COMPLETION

The GAMESA Group applies the percentage of completion method (Note 17) to firm wind farm
construction contracts and contracts for the sale of WTGS to non-Group third parties that have
the following characteristics:

e There is a firm commitment for the buyer.

e The total revenues to be received may be estimated with an acceptable degree of
confidence.

e The costs up until fulfilment of the contract, and the degree of completion to date, can be
reliably estimated.

e If the contract is unilaterally finished by the buyer, the latter is obliged to compensate the
GAMESA Group for at least the costs and profit margin accrued up to the date of
termination.

This policy involves the recognition as revenue in the consolidated income statement of the
result of applying to the estimated overall profit margin on each contract for the sale of wind
farms the stage of completion of the wind farm at the end of the reporting period.

In the case of the manufacture and assembly of WGTS for third parties outside the GAMESA
Group, the stage of completion is measured by reference to economic criteria, calculating the
proportion that contract costs incurred until the end of the reporting period bear to the estimated
total contract costs to be incurred until contract completion. The percentage of completion
method is used based on criteria/technical milestones (location of sites, issuance of permits and
authorization to connect wind energy plants to the electrical grid), in the case of separate
agreements for the development and sale of wind energy plants.
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The GAMESA Group recognises the total cost incurred plus the relevant margin in excess of
that corresponding to the related stage of completion under “Trade and Other Receivables” and
“Trade Receivables from Related Companies” in the consolidated balance sheet with a credit to
“Revenue” in the consolidated income statement. The costs incurred on the manufacture of
wind turbines and the relevant construction of wind energy plants are charged against the
heading "Procurements" in the consolidated income statement (Note 17).

If the total estimated costs exceed the contract revenue, the related loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement (Notes 3.Q and 23).

If circumstances arise that change the initial estimates made for ordinary income, costs or the
extent of completion, the estimates are changed. Revisions may result in increases or
decreases in estimated income and costs and they are reflected in the income statement in the
period in which the circumstances giving rise to those revisions are known by management.

C. GOODWILL

Goodwill is initially measured as the amount in excess paid, the amount of any non-controlling
stake in a target company and, in a business combination carried out by stages, the fair value at
the acquisition date of any prior stakes in the target company's equity above the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired. If the total amount paid, the non-controlling stake recognised
and the interest previously maintained is less than the fair value of the acquired company's net
assets in the event of very favourable conditions, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

Goodwill is not depreciated and at least at the end of each financial year it has to be estimated if
there has been any impairment that reduce its recoverable value to an amount smaller than the
net cost registered, doing, in such case, an appropriate provision (Note 3.F).

D. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets are recognised initially at acquisition or production cost and are subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets - Development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is
incurred.

In accordance with IFRS, the GAMESA Group classifies as intangible assets the expenses
incurred in the development of projects for which it can be demonstrated that the following
conditions have been met:

e The expenditure is specifically identified and controlled by project and its distribution over
time is clearly defined.

e They are feasible projects from a technical standpoint; it is intended to complete the
projects and it is possible to use the results thereof.

e There are technical and financial resources to be able to complete the project.
e The project development expenditure can be measured reliably.

e Future economic benefits will foreseeably be generated through the sale or use of the
project by the GAMESA Group.

If it cannot be demonstrated that these conditions have been met, development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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In-house work performed by the GAMESA Group on intangible assets is recognised at
accumulated cost (external costs plus in-house costs, determined on the basis of the hourly
costs of the employees engaged therein), and is recognised with a credit to the account “Other
Operating income - Group work on non-current assets” in the consolidated income statement
(Note 29.A).

The amortisation of development expenditures begins when the projects are in the conditions
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner initially intended by the GAMESA
Group. The expenditure is amortised in general on a straight-line basis over the estimated
period of time that the new product will generate economic benefits, being this period between 5
and 7 years.

Concessions, patents, licences, trademarks and similar

The amounts recognised by the GAMESA Group in connection with concessions, patents,
licences and similar items relate to the costs incurred in their acquisition, which are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from five to ten
years.

Software

The acquisition and development costs incurred in relation to the basic computer systems used
in the management of the GAMESA Group are recognised with a charge to “Other Intangible
Assets” in the consolidated balance sheet. The costs of maintaining computer systems are
charged against the consolidated income statement in the year in which they are incurred.

Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over five years from the entry into
service of each application.

E. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, which are all for own use, are stated in the balance sheet at
acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment losses. In
addition to purchase price, acquisition cost includes non-recoverable indirect taxes and any
other costs related directly to the entry into service of the asset for its intended use (including
interest and other borrowing costs incurred during the construction period).

The costs of expansion, modernisation or improvements leading to increase productivity,
capacity or efficiency or to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalised,
together with the borrowing costs incurred during the construction period only. Repairs that do
not lead to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets and maintenance expenses are
charged to the income statement for the year in which they are incurred.

In-house work performed by the GAMESA Group on property, plant and equipment assets is
recognised at accumulated cost (external costs plus in-house costs, determined on the basis of
the hourly costs of the employees engaged therein), and is recognised with a credit to the
account “Other operating income - Group work on non-current Assets” in the consolidated
income statement (Note 29.A).

The GAMESA Group depreciates its property, plant and equipment using the straight-line
method, distributing the cost of the assets over the following years of estimated useful life:
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Average estimated useful

life
Buildings 20-33
Plant and machinery 5-10
Other property, plant and equipment 3-10

Since the GAMESA Group does not have to incur any significant costs in relation to the closure
of its facilities (disassembly or other similar costs) the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet does not include any provisions in this connection.

F. ASSET IMPAIRMENT

At the end of each financial statements, the GAMESA Group reviews its non-current assets to
determine whether there is any evidence that those assets might have suffered an impairment
loss. If there was any evidence, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset itself does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other assets, the GAMESA Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In the case of goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or which have not
yet came into operation, at the end of each reporting period GAMESA Group systematically
analyses their recoverability, unless they present signs of impairment, in which case it will be
directly estimated the recoverable amount of that asset (Notes 3.C, 8 and 9).

The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less the costs to sell,
which is taken to be the present value of the estimated future cash flows. In assessing value in
use, the assumptions used in making the estimates include pre-tax discount rates, growth rates
and expected changes in selling prices and costs. The GAMESA Group estimates pre-tax
discount rates which reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-
generating unit. The growth rates and the changes in selling prices and costs are based on in-
house and industry forecasts and experience and future expectations, respectively.

The discount rates used by the GAMESA Group are based on the weighted average cost of
capital (WACC), which is 8.5% (9.2% in 2014), depending on the risks associated with each
specific asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised for the difference with a charge to the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised for an asset in prior years are reversed when there is a change in the
estimates concerning the recoverable amount of the asset, increasing the carrying amount of
the asset, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised, except in the case of
the impairment of goodwill, which must not be reversed.
G. INVENTORIES
"Inventories” in the consolidated balance sheet includes the assets that the GAMESA Group:

e holds for sale in the ordinary course of its business,

e has in process of production, construction or development to this end, or

e expects to consume them in the production process or in the provision of services.

Raw materials and supplies, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of
average acquisition or production cost and realisable value.
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Goods held for resale are stated at the lower of acquisition cost and market value.

The non-current assets (basically WTGS, fixtures and civil engineering work) of the wind farms
that are included in the scope of consolidation and are held for sale are classified as inventories
and are measured in the same way as other inventories, including the borrowing costs borne
until they are ready for use.

If a wind farm held for sale has been in operation for more than one year and has no related
third-party purchase commitment, purchase option or similar agreements, and none is any
foreseen, the non-current assets assigned thereto are transferred from “Inventories” to
“Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, Plant and Equipment in Use” in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Obsolete, defective or slow-moving inventories have generally been registered at realisable
value.

H. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial investments

Investments are recognised initially at fair value plus the transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through changes in profit or loss. Financial assets stated at fair value
through changes in profit and loss are initially recognised at their fair value and the transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.

The GAMESA Group classifies its current and non-current financial assets in the following four
categories:

e Financial assets at fair value through changes in profit or loss: These assets have certain
of the following characteristics:

o The GAMESA Group intends to generate a profit from short-term fluctuations in
their prices.

o They have been included in this asset category since initial recognition, since they
form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit
taking.

o Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

The financial assets included in this category are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at fair value, and the changes in fair value are recognised under “Finance Costs”,
“Finance Income” and “Exchange Differences (Gains and Losses)”, as appropriate, in the
consolidated income statement.

The GAMESA Group recognises in this category derivative financial instruments which,
although they are effective as hedges in accordance with the GAMESA Group’s risk
management policies, do not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39, Financial
Instruments. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the impact of these financial instruments
on the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements is not material (Note 22).

e Held-to-maturity investments: These are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the GAMESA Group has the positive intention to hold
until the date of maturity. The assets included in this category are measured at amortised
cost, and the interest income is recognised in profit or loss on the basis of the effective
interest rate. The amortised cost is understood to be the initial cost minus principal
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repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectibility. The effective interest rate is the discount rate that, at the date of
acquisition of the asset, exactly matches the initial amount of a financial instrument to all
its estimated cash flows of all kinds through its residual life.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the GAMESA Group did not have any financial assets
in this category.

Loans and receivables: These are financial assets originated by the companies in
exchange for supplying cash, goods or services directly to a debtor. The assets included
in this category are also measured at “amortised cost” and are tested for impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets: These are financial assets not classified in any of the
aforementioned three categories, nearly all of which relate to equity investments. These
assets are presented in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value, which in the case of
unlisted companies, is obtained using alternative methods, such as comparison with
similar transactions or, if sufficient information is available, by discounting expected
future cash flows. Changes in this market value are recognised with a charge or a credit
to “Equity - Of the parent - Unrealised asset and liability revaluation reserve” in the
consolidated balance sheet until these investments are disposed of, at which time the
accumulated balance of this heading related to these investments is fully allocated to the
consolidated income statement.

However, investments in the share capital of unlisted companies whose fair value cannot
be measured reliably are measured at acquisition cost. This procedure was used for all
the available-for-sale financial assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 (Note 12).

Management of the GAMESA Group decides on the most appropriate classification for each
asset on acquisition and reviews the classification at the end of each reporting period.

Category of financial assets at fair value

Following is the analysis of the financial instruments which at December 31, 2015 and 2014
were measured at fair value subsequent to their initial recognition, classified in categories from 1
to 3, depending on the fair value measurement method:

Category 1: their fair value is obtained from directly observable quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Category 2: their fair value is determined using observable market inputs other than the
quoted prices included in category 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Category 3: their fair value is determined using measurement techniques that include
inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not directly observable in the market.
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Fair value at December 31, 2015

Thousands of euros Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total
Non-current financial assets

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - 7,584 - 7,584
Current Financial Assets

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - 9,662 - 9,662
Non-current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - (3,869) - (3,869)
Current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - (4,265) - (4,265)
Total - 9,112 - 9,112

Fair value at December 31, 2014

Thousands of euros Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total
Non-current financial assets

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - 1,864 - 1,864
Current Financial Assets

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - 8,963 - 8,963
Non-current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - (738) - (738)
Current liabilities

Derivative financial instruments (Note 22) - (13,448) - (13,448)
Total - (3,359) - (3,359)

The market value of the various financial instruments is calculated as follows:

The market value of derivatives listed on an organised market is their market price at
year-end.

Hedging and trading derivatives consist of forward exchange rate contracts, interest rate
swaps and raw material swaps (electricity). These forward exchange rate contracts have
been stated at fair value using the forward exchange rates listed on an active market.
Interest-rate swaps are measured at fair value using forward interest rates extracted
from observable yield curves. Raw material swaps are measured at fair value using the
prices and interests from observable yield curves. The effects of discounting are
generally not significant for level 2 derivatives.

To measure derivatives not traded on an organised market, the GAMESA Group uses
assumptions based on year-end market conditions. Specifically, the fair value of interest
rate swaps is calculated by discounting at a market interest rate the difference between
the swap rates, and the market value of foreign currency forward contracts is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash flows using the forward rates existing at year-
end; and the market value of raw material swap contracts are calculated by discounting
the estimated cash flows, estimating the future prices at the year end.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers to or from the fair value hierarchy levels on
the date of the event concerned or the date on which the circumstances that gave rise to
the transfer change.

There have been no transfers at any level during 2015.
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The measurement criteria for the derivatives at December 31, 2015 are those taken into
consideration by IFRS 13, considering credit risk, including the one of GAMESA, over
the fair value of certain financial instruments. Credit risk is the possibility of incurring a
loss if the counter party to a transaction does not fully comply with its financial
obligations agreed by contract in due time, form or amount. However, in general terms, it
may also be defined as a decline in the value of assets due to the impairment of the
counterparty's credit rating, even in the case where the counterparty fully complies with
agreed payments. The impact due to the adjustment for credit risk made to the
measurement of financial instruments depends on several factors.

o A higher nominal amount implies a larger loss in the event of delinquency by
one of the parties.

o  Longer-term means higher credit risk.
o  Counterparty credit ratings are the primary risk factor.

o  Guarantees are signed in order to reduce the exposure to counterparty credit
risk.

The application of IFRS 13 to the measurement of derivatives at December 31, 2015 and
2014 did not give rise to any significant impact.

The effect of credit risk on the measurement of financial instruments depends on their future
settlement. In the event that the settlement is favourable to the Group, a credit spread for
the counterparty is included to quantify the probability of non-payment at maturity.
Otherwise, if the settlement is expected to be negative for the Group the credit risk itself is
applied to the final settlement for the Group. To determine whether or not the future
settlements are favourable to the Group, a stochastic model must be used that simulates
the performance of the derivative in various scenarios using complex mathematical models
based on the volatility of the underlying asset, and applying the resulting credit spread in
each simulation. The fair value of the rest of the financial assets and liabilities measured at
amortized cost is considered to approximate their carrying value in accordance with IFRS

13.

Impairment of financial assets

Except for the financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss, the financial assets
are analysed by GAMESA Group in order to test them for impairment periodically and at least at
the end of each reporting period. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence that
the estimated future cash flows of the asset have been affected as a result of one or more

events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset.

The GAMESA Group considers that a significant or prolonged decrease in fair value to below
cost of unlisted shares classified as available for sale is objective evidence that the instrument

has become impaired.

For the other financial assets, the GAMESA Group considers the following to be objective

indicators of impairment:
o financial difficulty of the issuer or significant counterparty;
e default or delay in interest or principal repayments; or
o likelihood that the borrower will go bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation process.

Cash and cash equivalents
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“Cash and Cash Equivalents” in the consolidated balance sheet includes cash on hand, demand
deposits and other highly liquid short-term investments that can be readily realised in cash
(within a maximum of 3 months) and are not subject to a risk of changes in value (Note 16).

Bank borrowings

Loans, bonds and similar interest-bearing items are initially recognised at the amount received,
net of direct issue costs, under “Bank Borrowings” in the consolidated balance sheet. Borrowing
costs are recognised on an accrual basis in the consolidated income statement using the
effective interest method and they are aggregated to the carrying amount of the financial
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the year in which they arise. Also, obligations
under finance leases are recognised at the present value of the lease payments under this
consolidated balance sheet heading (Note 21).

Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (Note 22)

Financial derivatives are initially recognised at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet and
the required valuation adjustments are subsequently made to reflect their fair value at all times.
Gains and losses arising from these changes are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, unless the derivative has been designated as a hedge which is highly effective, in
which case it is recognised as follows:

e In the case of fair value hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments designated as hedges and changes in the fair value of a hedged item due to
the hedged risk are recognised with a charge or credit, as appropriate, to the
consolidated income statement.

¢ In the case of cash flow hedges, the changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives
are recognised, in respect of the ineffective portion of the hedges, in the consolidated
income statement, and the effective portion is recognised under “Equity - Of the parent -
Unrealised asset and liability revaluation reserve” and “Equity - Of the parent -
Conversion Differences”, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet. If a hedge of a
firm commitment or forecasted transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or a non-financial liability, this balance is taken into account in the initial
measurement of the asset or liability arising from the hedged transaction. If a hedge of a
firm commitment or forecasted transaction does not result in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or a non-financial liability, the amount recognised under “Equity - Of the
parent - unrealised asset and liability revaluation reserve” in the consolidated balance
sheet is recognised in the consolidated income statement in the same period as that in
which the hedged item affects the net profit or loss.

The GAMESA Group tests the effectiveness of its hedges, and the related tests are
performed prospectively and retrospectively.

When hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative loss or gain at that date recognised
under “Equity - Of the parent - Unrealised asset and liability revaluation reserve” is retained
under that heading until the hedged transaction occurs, at which time the loss or gain on the
transaction will be adjusted. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss recognised under the aforementioned heading is transferred to the consolidated income
statement.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivatives in
accordance with the policies described in this Note for the other derivatives when their
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characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not stated at fair value, and the changes in value are recognised with a charge or
a credit to the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

The financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the GAMESA Group are classified on
the basis of the nature of the issue as liabilities or equity instruments, as appropriate.

The GAMESA Group considers equity instruments to be any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Disposal of financial instruments

The GAMESA Group derecognises financial instruments only when the contractual rights on the
cash flows from the assets expire, or the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to another entity.

The Group derecognises the collection rights assigned (“factorized”) and drawn down, since the
rewards, rights and risks associated with these accounts receivable are contractually transferred
to the factor, and, specifically, the factor assumes the related bad debt risk. The unmatured
balances receivable arising from without-recourse factoring transactions at December 31, 2015
that were derecognised by the Group amounted to €120.5 million (€247.5 million at December
31, 2014). The average amount of factored receivables in 2015 was €175.5 million (€142.9
million in 2014).

An exchange of debt instruments between a lender and borrower, provided that the instruments
have substantially different conditions, will be recognised as the cancellation of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial
modification of the current conditions governing a financial liability or a portion thereof
(regardless of whether or not it is attributable to financial difficulties affecting the debtor) is
recognised as a cancellation of the original financial liability and a new financial liability is
recognised (Note 21).

I.  NON-CURRENT ASSETS (OR DISPOSAL GROUPS OF ASSETS) CLASSIFIED AS
HELD-FOR-SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use, for which they must be
available for immediate sale in their present condition and their sale must be highly probable.

For the sale of an asset or disposal group to be highly probable, the following conditions must
be met:

. The GAMESA Group must be committed to a plan to sell the asset or disposal group.

. An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated.

. The asset or disposal group must be actively marketed for sale at a price that is
reasonable in relation to its current fair value.

o The sale should be expected to be qualified for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification as held for sale.

o It is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made.

Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured in the consolidated balance
sheet at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Also, non-current assets
are not depreciated while they are classified as held for sale.
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There are events and circumstances that could spend the period necessary to complete the sale
beyond one year. An extension of the period required to complete a sale does not mean that the
asset (or disposable group of assets) is classified as held-for-sale if the delay is caused by
events or circumstances outside of the company's control and there is sufficient evidence that
the company remains committed to its plan to sell the asset (or disposable group of assets).

A discontinued transaction or activity is a component that has been sold or otherwise disposed
of, or classified as held for sale and:

. represents a significant line of business or a geographic area and which may be
considered to be independent from the rest;

. forms part of an individual and co-ordinated plan to sell or otherwise dispose of a
significant line of business or a geographic area of operations that may be considered to
be independent from the rest, or

. is a subsidiary acquired solely for the purpose of resale.

J. LEASES

The GAMESA Group classifies leases as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are classified in the appropriate asset category in the
consolidated balance sheet based on their nature and function at the lower of the fair value of
the leased asset and the aggregate present values of the amounts payable to the lessor plus the
purchase option, with a credit to “Bank borrowings” in the consolidated balance sheet. These
assets are depreciated using methods similar to those used for the assets owned by the
GAMESA Group (Note 10).

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

K. SEGMENT REPORTING

Reporting on operating segments is presented in accordance with the internal information that is
provided to the maximum decision-taking authority. The maximum decision-taking authority has
been identified, and is responsible for assigning resources and evaluating performance of
operating segments, as the Board of Directors which is in charge of taking strategic decisions.

L. TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY

Group companies

The functional currency of most of the GAMESA Group companies is the euro.

For all of the GAMESA Group’s foreign companies with a functional currency other than the
euro, the functional currency is the same as the local currency. Therefore, there are no
functional currencies which are different from the local currencies in which each company pays
the corresponding income tax. Consequently, changes in exchange rates do not give rise to any
temporary differences which might lead to the recognition of a deferred tax asset or liability.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency of the GAMESA Group companies
are translated to euros at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. During
the year, exchange differences between the exchange rate at which the transaction was
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translated and the exchange rate at which the collection or payment was translated are
recognised with a charge or a credit to the consolidated income statement.

Also, foreign currency fixed-income securities and receivables and payables at December 31, of
each year are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing at the
consolidated balance sheet date. Any exchange differences arising are recognised with a
charge or a credit, as appropriate, to “Exchange differences (Gains and Losses)” in the
consolidated income statement.

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the net investment in a
company's foreign investment is recognised in profit and loss in the separate financial
statements for the reporting company, or in the individual financial statements for the foreign
business, as appropriate. In the Consolidated Financial Statements that can attain the foreign
business and the reporting company, those exchange differences are initially recognised as a
component separate from equity under the heading exchange differences and they are
subsequently recognised in profit and loss when the foreign business is disposed or the
investment is recovered fully or partially by other means (Note 20).

The hedges that the GAMESA Group uses to reduce foreign currency risk are described in Note
22.

The detail of the equivalent euro value of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the euro held by the GAMESA Group at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is
as follows:

Equivalent value in thousands of euros

12.31.2015 12.31.2014
Currency Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Pound Sterling 5,428 2,216 2,911 6,760
US Dollar 524,599 663,275 503,246 317,957
Japanese Yen 1,931 702 7,923 535
Egyptian Pound 25,649 14,969 18,296 -
Chinese Yuan 274,089 289,796 222,583 177,546
Polish Zloty 5,945 6,788 11,139 -
Indian Rupee 381,159 263,946 270,061 156,144
Brazilian Real 280,326 248,149 222,487 158,824
Moroccan Dirham 9,95 18,851 P12,049 18,304
Romanian Lev 762 5,003 11,342 2,341
Mexican Peso 94,418 5,525 23,914 6,797
Other currencies 23,660 37,725 24,206 416
Total 1,627,916 1,556,945 1,330,157 845,624

The detail of the main foreign currency balances, based on the nature of the items concerned, is
as follows:

Equivalent value in thousands of euros

12.31.2015 12.31.2014

Nature of the Balances Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Trade receivables (Note 15) 934,781 - 683,675 -
Cash and other equivalent liquid assets

(Note 16) 693,135 - 646,482 -
Payables - 1,491,301 - 815,751
Bank borrowings (Note 21) - 65,644 - 29,873
Total 1,627,916 1,556,945 1,330,157 845,624
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M. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants related to assets are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets
financed by them and, therefore, they reduce the annual depreciation/amortisation charge
relating to each asset over its useful life (Notes 9 and 10).

Grants related to income are allocated to income in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. “Other operating income” in the consolidated income statements for 2015 and 2014
includes €664 and €214 thousands, respectively, in this connection (Note 29.A).

N. CLASSIFICATION OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Liabilities are classified as current or non-current on the basis of the projected period to maturity,
disposal or settlement. Therefore, non-current liabilities are amounts due to be settled within
more than twelve months from the date of the consolidated balance sheet, except as explained
below.

Loans and credit facilities assigned to wind farms held for sale are classified at current or non-
current on the basis of the period in which the wind farm will foreseeably be sold, since such
sale, which is carried out through the sale of the shares of the public/private limited liability
companies in which these wind farms are legally structured, entails the exclusion from the scope
of consolidation of all the assets and liabilities of the wind farms.

Accordingly, regardless of the repayment schedule contractually relating to these borrowings,
the total amount of borrowings assigned to the wind farms that will foreseeably be sold within
twelve months from year-end is classified as a current liability.

O. INCOME TAX

Since 2002 GAMESA and certain subsidiaries located in the Basque Country subject to local
income tax legislation pay taxes under the special consolidated tax regime. This regime is now
regulated under the chapter VI of the title VI of the local Income Tax Regulation 11/2013, of
December 5, of the Vizcaya Historical Territory.

Also, since 2010 the subsidiaries located in the Autonomous Community of Navarre Gamesa
Edlica, S.L., Gamesa Innovation and Technology, S.L. Unipersonal and Estructuras Metalicas
Singulares, S.A. Unipersonal have filed consolidated tax returns pursuant to Navarre
Corporation Tax Regulation 24/1996, of December 30.

Since 2005, Gamesa Technology Corporation, Inc. and its subsidiaries are taxed by the Federal
Income Tax under the Consolidated Tax consolidation of the United Estates, being Gamesa
Technology Corporation, Inc. the parent company of the Fiscal Group.

Foreign companies and the rest of the Spanish companies that are not taxed under tax
consolidation are taxed in accordance with the legislation in force in their respective
jurisdictions.

The income tax expense is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. This method
consists of determining deferred tax assets and liabilites on the basis of the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax base, using the tax rates that
can objectively be expected to apply when the assets are realised and the liabilities are settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from direct charges or credits to equity accounts are
also accounted for with a charge or credit to equity.

However, if the deferred taxes arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability on a

transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction has no effect on
the tax gain or loss, they are recognised.
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The GAMESA Group recognises deferred tax assets to the extent that it is expected that there
will be future taxable profits against which tax assets arising from temporary differences can be
utilised (Notes 25 and 27).

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on subsidiary's undistributed
profits, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Double taxation and other tax credits and tax relief earned as a result of economic events
occurring in the year are deducted from the income tax expense, unless there are doubts as to
whether they can be realised.

P. PARENT COMPANY TREASURY SHARES

The treasury shares held by the Parent of the GAMESA Group at year-end are recognised at
acquisition cost with a charge to “Equity - Of the Parent - Treasury Shares” in the consolidated
balance sheet (Note 18.E).

The gains and losses obtained by the GAMESA Group on disposals of treasury shares are
recognised with a charge or a credit to the Group's consolidated equity.

Q. PROVISIONS
A distinction is drawn between:

e Provisions: present obligations at the balance sheet date arising from past events which
are uncertain as to their amount and/or timing.

e Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events beyond the control of the consolidated companies; or possible obligations,
whose occurrence is unlikely or whose amount cannot be reliably estimated.

The Group's Consolidated Financial Statements include all the material provisions with respect
to which it is considered that it is more likely than not that the obligation will have to be settled
and whose amount can be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
Consolidated Financial Statements but rather are disclosed, except for those which arise in
business combinations (Notes 2.G and 23).

Provisions - which are quantified on the basis of the best information available on the
consequences of the event giving rise to them and are reviewed and adjusted at the end of each
year - are used to cater for the specific obligations for which they were originally recognised.
Provisions are fully or partially reversed when such obligations cease to exist or are reduced.

Provisions are recognised when the liability or obligation arises with a charge to the relevant
heading in the consolidated income statement based on the nature of the obligation, for the
present value of the provision when the effect of discounting the obligation is material.

Provisions for warranty costs are recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the
best estimate of the expenditure required by the GAMESA Group to settle its liability, calculated
on the basis of historical information and reports drawn up by the Technical Department (Note
23).

Present obligations deriving from those contracts considered to be onerous are recognised and
recorded as provisions (Notes 3.B and 23). Onerous contracts are considered to be those in
which the unavoidable costs to comply with the associated obligations exceed the financial
benefits that are expected to be received from those contracts.
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Court proceedings and/or claims in progress

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, certain litigation and claims were in progress against the
consolidated companies arising from the ordinary course of their operations. The Group's legal
advisers and its Directors consider that the provisions recognised for this purpose are sufficient
and that the outcome of these proceedings and claims will not have an additional material effect
on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years in which they are settled (Note 23).

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no significant contingent liabilities or provisions
that had not been recognised or disclosed in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

R. TERMINATION BENEFITS

Under current labour legislation, the consolidated companies are required to pay termination
benefits to employees terminated under certain conditions. The provisions related to
restructuring processes when the Group has the implicit obligation to cover an outflow of
resources due to the existence of a detailed formal plan and the generation of valid
expectations among affected parties that the process will take place, either because the plan
has started to be executed or because its main characteristics have been announced. The
provisions for restructuring only include the payments that are directly related to restructuring
that are not associated with the Group's continuing operations.

S. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of these obligations at the
date of grant. This fair value is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the GAMESA Group's estimate of the shares that will ultimately be delivered and credited to
equity (Note 18.E).

Fair value is measured using the market prices available on the measurement date, taking into
account the characteristics of the related plan. If market prices are not available, generally
accepted valuation techniques for measuring financial instruments of this nature are used (Note
18.E).

If a concession of equity instruments is cancelled or liquidated during the period in which the
concession is irrevocable (for a reason other than cancellation for failure to comply with the
conditions for its irrevocable nature), GAMESA Group recognises the cancelation or liquidation
as an acceleration of the consolidation of rights and, accordingly, will immediately recognise the
amount in accordance with the preceding paragraphs that otherwise would have been
recognised for the services received over the course of the period remaining for complying with
the conditions.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal to their current fair value determined at
each balance sheet date is recognised.

T. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The GAMESA Group presents the consolidated cash flow statement using the indirect method,
whereby first the net profit or loss is presented, which is then corrected for the effects of non-
monetary transactions, of all manner of deferred and accrued payment items resulting from
collections and payments in the past or in the future, and of consolidated income statement
items associated with cash flows from activities classified as investing or financing activities.

The following terms are used in the consolidated statement of cash flows with the meanings
specified:

e Cash flows: Inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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e Operating activities: The principal revenue-producing activities of the GAMESA Group
companies and other activities that are not investing or financing activities.

e Investing activities: The acquisition, sale or disposal through other means of non-current
assets and other investments not included in cash and cash equivalents.

e Financing activities: Activities that cause changes in the size and composition of equity
and liabilities and do not form part of operating activities.

There have been no significant additional non-monetary transactions in 2015 and 2014.
U. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding the average
number of GAMESA shares held.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding in the year, adjusted by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive
potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares of the Company. For such purposes, conversion is
deemed to take place at the start of the period or when the potentially dilutive ordinary shares
are issued, where they have become outstanding during the period in question.

Basic earnings per share in 2015 and 2014 coincided with diluted earnings per share, since
there were no potential shares outstanding in those years (Note 35).

V. DIVIDENDS

Any interim dividends approved by the Board of Directors are deducted from “Equity - Of the
Parent” in the consolidated balance sheet. However, the final dividends proposed by the Board
of Directors of GAMESA to the shareholders at the General Meeting are not deducted from
equity until they have been approved by the latter.

W. INTEREST COST

General and specific interest expense directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily require a substantial period of
time to be prepared for use or sale, the cost of those assets is added, up until the time at which

they are substantially prepared for use or sale.

Financial income obtained on the temporary investment of specific loans until used on qualifying
assets is deducted from the interest expense that may be capitalised.

All other interest expenses are recognised in the income statement in the year in which they are
incurred.

4. Financial risk management policy

GAMESA Group is exposed to certain financial risks that it manages by grouping together risk
identification, measurement, concentration limitation and oversight systems. GAMESA's
Corporate Management and the business units coordinate the management and limitation of
financial risks through the policies approved at the highest executive level, in accordance with the
established rules, policies and procedures. The identification, assessment and hedging of
financial risks are the responsibility of each business unit, also with a coordination at Group level.
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A. MARKET RISK (FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK)

This risk arises as a result of the international transactions carried out by the GAMESA Group in
the ordinary course of its business. Part of its revenues and its expenses are denominated in US
dollars, Indian rupees, Chinese yuan, Brazilian reals and Mexican pesos and, to a lesser extent,
other currencies apart from the euro. The main line of action of the hedging strategy is based on
maximizing natural hedging of the business by locating the supply of components and the
manufacturing in the main regions where the GAMESA Group is stablished and sells its
products (e.g. India, Brazil and China).

In line with this, the Group also includes in certain circumstances formulas to mitigate exchange
rate risk in the contracts with its clients.

However, the Group also uses financial instruments and hedging strategies in order to manage
the exposure of the results to the foreign currency risk, which are affected by fluctuations that
occur in the exchange rates.

In order to manage and minimise this risk, the GAMESA Group uses hedging strategies, since
its objective is to generate profits only through its ordinary business, and not by speculating in
relation to exchange rate fluctuations.

For this purpose, the Group analyses the impact of the foreign currency risk on the basis of its
firm order book, the forecasted portfolio and the planned transactions that are highly probable
on the basis of contractual evidence. Risk exposure limits are established each year for a time
horizon, which is in the range of 12-24 months, although a time horizon of less than one year is
also considered which enables the Group, where necessary, to adapt to market trends, always
associated with its net cash flows.

The Group’s risk management policy is to cover up to a maximum of 85% of projected cash
flows in each principal currency in the following period ranging 12 and 18 months. Periodically,
new cash flow forecasts are updated in order to manage the adequate hedging strategy.

The main foreign currency balances at December 31, 2015 and 2014 are detailed in Note 3.L to
the accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The instruments used to hedge against this risk are basically exchange rate swaps (Note 22).

The following table shows the effects on profit and loss and equity of changes in exchange rates
at the year-end for the Group's most significant currencies:

Thousands of euros Debit / (Credit) (*)
Devaluation 5% of euro Appreciation 5% of euro
Impact on Impact on

Exchange rate Impact on profits Impact on equity

CETEY at 12.31.2015 b I I [T before taxes before taxes
efore taxes before taxes

US Dollar 1,0887 (866) (6,426) 783 5.814

Chinese Yuan 7,0608 (1,585) (13,365) 1,434 3,652

Indian Rupee 72,0203 (2,903) (9,390) 2,627 8,503

Brazilian Real 4,3117 (940) (4,345) 851 3,931

Mexican Peso 18,7873 (556) (2,316) 503 2,096
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Thousands of euros Debit / (credit) (*)

Devaluation 5% of euro Appreciation 5% of euro

Impact on Impact on

Exchange rate Impact on profits Impact on equity

Sy at 12.31.2014 prof;;sxggfore befg?: Itglxes before taxes before taxes

US Dollar 1,2141 (4,938) (3,783) 4,507 3,427
Chinese Yuan 7,5358 (1,354) (5,857) 1,219 5,299
Indian Rupee 76,7165 (593) (8,403) 532 7,602
Brazilian Real 3,2207 (1,912) (5,018) 1,730 4,552
Mexican Peso 17,9183 (1,181) (1,629) 1,068 1,473

(*) Income and equity increase in negative and expenses and equity decrease in positive.
B. MARKET RISK (PRICE)

The price risk considered by the Group is related to the price of raw materials that the Group
mitigates, in general, transferring the risk to customers through sales contracts.

C. MARKET RISK (INTEREST RATE)

The GAMESA Group uses external financing sources for the performance of some of their
operations, and it is exposed to rising interest rates on its debt.

Loans at variable rates expose the Group to interest rate risk, which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. Loans at fixed rate expose the Group to fair value interest rate risks.

The hedging instruments assigned specifically to debt instruments are limited to a maximum of
the same nominal amounts and have the same established maturities as the hedged items
(Note 22).

The GAMESA Group implements an interest rate risk management analyzing periodically, at
least every six months, the loans exposure to the interest rates and terms, determining the ideal
percentage of fixed or variable rate, always with a non-speculative hedging purposes.

The debt structure at December 31, 2015 and 2014, drawing a distinction between fixed and
floating rate borrowings (Note 21), is as follows:

Thousands of euros 2015 2014
Excluding Including Excluding Including
hedges hedges hedges hedges
Fixed Income - 220,777 - 12,805
Variable Rate 547,801 327,024 619,894 607,089

The floating-rate debt is basically tied to the LIBOR or EURIBOR.

The sensitivity of results and equity to changes in interest rates, taking into consideration the
effect of the interest rate hedging derivatives, is as follows:

Thousands of euros Debit / (Credit) (*)
Variation in interest Variation in interest
-0.25% +0,25%
Impact on profits Impact on equity Impact on profits Impact on equity
before taxes before taxes before taxes before taxes
Year 2015 (1,646) (6) 1,646 6
Year 2014 (2,304) (2) 2,304 2

(*) Income and equity increase in negative and expenses and equity decrease in positive.
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D. LIQUIDITY RISK

The GAMESA Group’s policy consist of holding cash and highly liquid non-speculative short-
term instruments through leading banks in order to be able to meet its future obligations. Also, it
attempts to maintain a financial debt structure that is in line with the nature of the obligations to
be financed and, therefore, non-current assets are financed with long-term financing (equity and
non-current borrowings), whereas working capital is financed with current borrowings.

Also, in 2015 the GAMESA Group had an average of unused credit facilities equal to
approximately 66.42% of the bank financing drawn down (60.77% in 2014).

E. CREDIT RISK

The GAMESA Group is exposed to credit risk to the extent that a counterparty or customer does
not meet its contractual obligations. Products and services are sold to customers that have an
appropriate and adequate credit history with respect to which solvency analyses are
established.

In addition, GAMESA Group's customer portfolio is mainly made up of large electric companies
with high credit ratings. For customers with no credit rating and in the case of international sales
to non-recurring customers, mechanisms such as irrevocable letters of credit and insurance
policies are used to ensure collection. Also, the financial solvency of customers is analysed and
specific terms and conditions are included in contracts aimed at guaranteeing payment of the
stipulated price.

The analysis of the age of financial assets outstanding for which no provision whatsoever has
been deemed necessary at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of euros 2015 2014
90 - 180 days 18,784 18,439
More than 180 days 85,107 80,385
Total 103,891 98,824

Moreover, historically the Group considered that, due to the characteristics of the customers,
receivables with lower than 90 days maturity have no credit risk because it is considered the
normal period of payment of the sector.

The credit quality of cash and other cash equivalents at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

Thousands of euros 2015 2014
A+ 32,009 52,185
A 188,195 152,342
A- 114,197 94,666
AA- 7,506 5,592
BBB+ 209,702 74,767
BBB 204,655 280,386
BBB- 50,074 121,502
BB+ or BB 60,647 19,332
BB- or lower 2,348 10,257
Total 869,333 811,029

5. Estimates and sources of uncertainty

The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements made it necessary for the GAMESA
Group to make assumptions and estimates. The estimates with a significant effect on the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are as follows:
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GAMESA launched a new business plan 2015-2017 published on June 16, 2015 which
includes measures that requires Management’'s estimation of the recoverable value of
certain fixed assets and intangible assets, (Notes 9 and 10) and stocks (Note 14).

The GAMESA Group recognises by reference to the stage of completion revenue from wind
farm and WTGS sale contracts that meet the requirements established in this connection
(Note 3.B). This requires that a reliable estimate must be made of the revenue from each
contract and the total contract costs, as well as of the percentage of completion at year-end
from technical and economic standpoints.

As indicated in Note 3.D and 3.E, the GAMESA Group determines the estimated useful
lives and the relevant depreciation/amortization charges for its intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment. The Group will increase the depreciation/amortisation
charge where useful lives are shorter than previously estimated, and write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The GAMESA Group estimates the current provisions required for guarantees for possible
repairs and start-up costs that the Group will have to incur in connection with sales of
WTGSs (Notes 3.Q and 23).

The GAMESA Group has made certain assumptions in order to calculate the liability arising
from obligations to employees (Notes 3.R and 18.E) The fair value of those financial
instruments granted as share-based payments that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using measurement techniques. The Group uses judgments to select a
variety of methods and to develop assumptions that are primarily based on the market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Changes in these assumptions would not
have a significant impact on these Consolidated Financial Statements.

The impairment tests require the estimation of the future evolution of the businesses and
the most appropriate discount rate in each case. GAMESA Group believes that its
estimates in this area are adequate and coherent with the current economic environment
and they reflect its investment plans and the best estimates available regarding its future
revenues and income, and it considers that its discount rates adequately reflect the risks
relating to each cash generating unit.

GAMESA analyses its accounts receivable and, on the basis of its best estimates,
quantifies the amount thereof that could be uncollectible (Note 15).

GAMESA Group estimates its contingent liabilities (Notes 3.Q and 23).

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. A significant level of
judgment is required to determine the worldwide provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations with respect to which the ultimate calculation of the tax is
uncertain in the ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes liabilities for potential
tax claims based on an estimation of whether or not additional taxes will be necessary.
When the final tax result differs from the amounts which were initially recognised, such
differences will have an effect on income tax and the provisions for deferred taxes in the
year in which they are deemed to arise (Note 27).

The GAMESA Group recognises deferred tax assets, tax loss carryforwards and unused tax
credits and tax relief only to the extent that their future realisation or utilisation is sufficiently
assured (Note 25).

As it is indicated in Note 36, in accordance with the Business Plan 2013-2015 and the new
strategic orientation of wind energy plant development and sale, the assets and liabilities
relating to the development activity in the United States are presented as disposal groups
held for sale after the decision by Management to suspend the development and sale of
wind farms in the United States.
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Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at December
31, 2015 and 2014 on the events analysed, events that take place in the future might make it
necessary to change these estimates (upwards or downwards) in coming years. Changes in
accounting estimates would be applied prospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS
8, recognising the effects of the change in estimates in the related consolidated income
statements.

6. Application of results

The proposal for distribution of 2015 net profits of Gamesa Corporacién Tecnolégica, S.A. that the
Board of Directors will present to shareholders at the General Meeting for approval, calculated in
accordance with Spanish accounting legislation applicable to the Company's Individual Financial
Statements, is as follows:

Thousands
of euros

Basis of distribution

Profit for the year 76,883
Total 76,883
Distribution

Voluntary reserves 34,322
Dividend 42,561
Total 76,883

7. Segment reporting

The reportable segments of the GAMESA Group are adapted to the operating configuration of the
business units and to the financial and management information used by the executive boards of
the Group being the following at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

e  Wind Turbines (*)
e  Operation and maintenance

(*) Wind turbine manufacturing includes the development, construction and sale of energy plants.
The segments were taken to be business units, since the GAMESA Group is organisationally
structured in this manner, and the internal information generated for the Board of Directors and is
also presented in this way.

A. INFORMATION BY BUSINESS UNITS

Revenue

The breakdown, by segment, of consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

Segment 2015 2014
Wind Turbines 3,033,097 2,411,087
Operation and Maintenance 470,705 435,070
Net revenue from continued operations 3,503,802 2,846,157

36



Profit for the year

The breakdown, by segment, of the contribution to the profit after tax for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Thousands of euros

Segment 2015 2014
Continuing Operations

Wind Turbines 230,417 125,817
Operation and Maintenance 63,164 55,362
Capital gains and constitution of Adwen (Note 11) 29,164 -
Total Results Segment Operations 322,745 181,179
Unassigned results (75,976) (51,212)
Corporate income tax (76,553) (38,119)
Results for the year attributable to the Parent company 170,216 91,848

(*) This item includes financial results

B. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

In addition, the GAMESA Group currently operates in the following geographical markets:

e Spain
e Rest of Europe
e United States

e China
e India

e Brazil

e Mexico

e Rest of the world

The most significant disclosures in this connection are as follows:

Revenue

The breakdown, by geographical segment, of revenue at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as

follows:
2015 2014
Geographical area Thousands of euros %  Thousands of euros %
Spain 312,137 8.9% 296,687 10.4%
Rest of Europe 428,417 12.2% 288,087 10.1%
United States 469,179 13.4% 380,871 13.4%
China 274,549 7.8% 126,046 4.4%
India 814,005 23.2% 477,627 16.8%
Brazil 620,045 17.7% 531,245 18.7%
Mexico 179,426 5.1% 359,708 12.6%
Rest of the world 406,044 11.7% 385,886 13.6%
Total 3,503,802 100% 2,846,157 100%
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Total assets

The detail, by geographical segment, of the total assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as

follows:
12.31.2015 12.31.2014
Geographical area Thousands of euros % Thousands of euros %
Spain 1,711,184 36.9% 1,843,676 43.4%
Rest of Europe 334,582 7.2% 282,570 6.6%
United States 539,153 11.6% 438,254 10.2%
China 409,490 8.8% 321,404 7.6%
India 716,370 15.4% 484,755 11.4%
Brazil 499,695 10.8% 423,214 10.0%
Mexico 219,289 4.7% 276,859 6.5%
Rest of the world 210,902 4.6% 181,118 4.3%
Total 4,640,665 100% 4,251,850 100%

Investment in assets

The detail, by geographical segment, of the investments in property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

12.31.2015 12.31.2014
Geographical area Thousands of euros % Thousands of euros %
Spain 76,453 45.5% 72,870 65.6%
Rest of Europe 4512 2.7% 6,917 6.2%
United States 9,324 5.6% 11,290 10.2%
China 13,388 8% 4,253 3.8%
India 41,711 24.8% 5,033 4.6%
Brazil 18,061 10.8% 10,318 9.3%
Mexico 3,548 2.1% 358 0.3%
Rest of the world 861 0.5% 47 0.0%
Total 167,858 100% 111,086 100%
8. Goodwill
The disclosure of "Goodwill" by cash-generating units is as follows:
Thousands of euros 12.31.2015 12.31.2014
"Wind Turbines" cash generating unit 266,862 266,862
"Operation and Maintenance" cash generating unit 121,548 119,894
Total 388,410 386,756

On July 29, 2015, the GAMESA Group subscribed a purchase-sale agreement for the acquisition
of 100% of B9 Energy O&M Limited share capital, a North Irish company mainly dedicated to the
maintenance of wind farms both in Ireland and in the United Kingdom for an amount of €2,687

thousands.

Goodwill that arose from that operation amounted to €1,654 thousands and has been totally
assigned to the “Operation and Maintenance” cash generation unit.

As indicated in Note 3.C, at least once a year the Group assesses whether its goodwill has
become impaired. In this regard, for the purposes of performing the impairment test, the goodwill
was entirely allocated to each of the cash-generating units that are consistent with the segments
identified by the Group (Note 7): “Wind Turbines" and "Operation and Maintenance”, since they
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are both the smallest identifiable groups of assets that the Group’s directors use to monitor them,
as provided for in IAS 36.

A. GOODWILL ALLOCATED TO THE “WIND TURBINE” CASH-GENERATING UNIT

For the goodwill identified with the WTGS cash generation unit, the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit taken as a whole was measured by reference to their value in use, which
was calculated on the basis of cash flow projections (approved by management) which represent
the best estimates covering a period of 5 years and an estimated residual value as a perpetual
return of a year that does not contain cyclical or seasonal factors, with a growth rate of 1%.

The cash flows considered correspond to those generated by the cash generating unit “Wind
turbines”, engaging in general in the design, development, manufacture and sale of WTGSs and
their related components, and the research and development activities associated therewith, and
the promotional activities necessary to sell wind energy plants. These production activities are
planned and managed jointly by the management of GAMESA regardless of the geographic
location of the promotion and installation activity, based on availability and efficiency criteria.

In order to calculate the value in use, the assumptions made include the discount rate based on
the weighted average cost of capital (WACC), which reflects time value of money and the risks
specific to each cash-generating unit, amounting 8.5%.

From a business standpoint, the following key assumptions were made in 2015:

e Growth in the MW sold (3,180 MW in 2015), in line with the Business Plan 2015-17
fundamentally due to the increase in overall demand, particularly in markets of emergent
countries.

e  Growth in operating margins (7.6% approximately of EBIT margin in 2015) in line with the
Business Plan 2015-17 due to the increase in activity, the launch of new products, the
optimization of variable costs and the reduction of fixed costs.

e Investment control in line with the Business Plan’s guides, and progressive improvement
in line with the Business Plan 2015-17, of working capital over sales ratio, due to the
aligning of the production to the portfolio entries and to the optimization of all the items
composing the current assets (inventories, trade receivables, etc).

Based on the estimates and projections available to the Directors of GAMESA, the income
forecasts attributable to each of the cash generating unit to which the aforementioned goodwill
was allocated adequately support the amounts of goodwill recognised at December 31, 2015.

In addition, from a perspective of analysing sensitivity, GAMESA Group has applied sensitivity
calculations to the results of this impairment test, recording the following reasonable changes in
the key assumptions:

e 5% decrease in the MW sold in coming years.
e 5% decrease in average revenues per MW.
e 5% increase in fixed costs.

These sensitivity analyses performed individually for each key assumption would not reveal the
existence of any impairment.

Furthermore, GAMESA has performed a sensitivity analysis, consisting of increasing the discount
rate by 50 basis points, which would not lead to the need to record any impairment.

39



B. GOODWILL ALLOCATED TO THE “OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE” CASH-
GENERATING UNIT

For the goodwill identified with the operating and maintenance cash-generating unit, the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit taken as a whole was measured by reference to
their value in use, which was calculated on the basis of cash flow projections (approved by
management) which represent the best estimates covering a period of 5 years and an estimated
residual value as a perpetual return of a year that does not contain cyclical or seasonal factors,
with a growth rate of 1%.

The cash flows taken into consideration relates to those generated by the business unit
"Operations and Maintenance", generally engaged in operating and maintenance activities at
wind energy plants in the portfolio. These production activities are planned and managed jointly
by the management of GAMESA regardless of the geographic location of the promotion and
installation activity, based on availability and efficiency criteria.

In order to calculate value in use, the assumptions made include the discount rates based on the
weighted average cost of capital (WACC), include the factors involved in which the time value of
money and the risks associated with the cash generating unit, which stand at 8.5%.

From a business standpoint, the following key assumptions were made in 2015:

e  Growth in the MW maintained over the coming years in accordance with the Business Plan
2015-17.

e Increase in the EBIT margin above the wind turbine segment, in line with the Business
Plan 2015-17 and in line with the improvement of 2015 (approximately 13.4% EBIT margin
in 2015).

Based on the estimates and projections available to the Directors of GAMESA, the income
forecasts attributable to each of the cash generating unit to which the aforementioned goodwill
was allocated adequately support the amounts of goodwill recognised and, therefore, no
problems regarding the recovery of the aforementioned goodwill were detected at December 31,
2015.

In addition, from a perspective of analysing sensitivity, at December 31, 2015 GAMESA Group
applied sensitivity calculations to the results of this impairment test, recording the following
reasonable changes in the key assumptions:

¢ 5% decrease in the MW maintained in coming years.
¢ 5% increase in the MW maintained in coming years.
e 5% decrease in average revenues per MW.
e 5% increase in average revenues per MW.

These sensitivity analyses performed individually for each key assumption would not reveal the
existence of any impairment.

Furthermore, GAMESA has performed a sensitivity analysis, consisting of increasing the discount
rate by 50 basis points, which would not lead to the need to record any impairment.

Therefore, in accordance with the estimates and projections available to the Group, the outlook
for both the Wind Turbine and Operating and Maintenance cash generating units to which the
goodwill is assigned adequately support the value of the goodwill recognised at December 31,
2015 and, as a result, there is no impairment whatsoever.
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9. Other.intangible assets

The changes in “Other Intangible Assets” in the consolidated balance sheet in 2015 and 2014

were as follows:

Development

Concessions,
patents, licenses,
trademarks and

Thousands of euros Costs similar Computer software Prepayments Total
Cost

Balance at 01.01.2014 483,001 27,128 76,544 1,711 588,384
Additions 49,766 - 3,745 2,181 55,692
Disposals (1,166) - (73) - (1,239)
Exchange differences in

foreign currency 2,330 575 283 - 3,188
Transfers 2,989 356 3,296 (3,239) 3,402
Balance at 12.31.2014 536,920 28,059 83,795 653 649,427
Additions 44,234 2,263 5,623 3,400 55,520
Disposals (257,155) - (751) - (257,906)
Exchange differences in

foreign currency 2,417 361 215 - 2,993
Transfers - - 2,909 (2,909) -
Balance at 12.31.2015 326,416 30,683 91,791 1,144 450,034
Depreciation

Balance at 01.01.2014 (181,833) (21,747) (52,178) - (255,758)
(ZZSaEr)ge for the year (Note (21,668) (108) (9,362) - (31,138)
Disposals 641 - 73 - 714
:Exchange differences in (138) @1) (164) ) (323)
oreign currency

Transfers (511) (190) 457 - (244)
Balance at 12.31.2014 (203,509) (22,066) (61,174) - (286,749)
ggaEr)ge for the year (Note (22,911) (191) (9,135) - (32,237)
Disposals 22,133 - 721 - 22,854
Fxchange differences in (124) (14) (112) ) (250)
oreign currency

Transfers - - - - -
Balance at 12.31.2015 (204,411) (22,271) (69,700) - (296,382)
Impairment losses

Balance at 01.01.2014 (125,531) - (35) - (125,566)
Impairment loss recognised ) ) ) ) )
in the year

Fxc_hange differences in (2,065) ) ) ) (2,065)
oreign currency

Transfers 385 (420) 35 - -
Balance at 12.31.2014 (127,211) (420) - - (127,631)
Impairment loss recognised ) ) )

in the year 2,600 2,600
:Exchange differences in (1,912) ) ) ) (1,912)
oreign currency

Disposals and reversal of

impairment losses 109,266 - - - 109,266
corrections and other

Balance as at 12.31.2015 (17,257) (420) - - (17,677)
Total other intangible

assets at 12.31.2014 206,200 5,573 22,621 653 235,047
Tl GineEr e fiols 104,748 7,992 22,001 1,144 135,975

assets at 12.31.2015
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During 2015 and 2014, the main increase in “Development costs” is due to the development of
the “WTG” division (mainly in the subsidiary Gamesa Innovation and Technology, S.L.
Unipersonal), of new wind turbine models and optimization of the components performance for an
amount of €42,058 thousands and €45,473 thousands, approximate and respectively.

The remaining capitalized development expenditure corresponds to improvements in technology
fully in use, in accordance with the business plan 2015-2017.

At December 31, 2014 the most significant development project relates to the Multi-MW platform
which allows the development of both onshore and offshore projects and that took part in the
transmission of offshore business to Adwen Offshore, S.L. in 2015 as described in Note 11, and
whose effect made this section decrease for an amount of €145,755 thousands.

The impairmen